
CORPORATE REPORT  

NO: R174 COUNCIL DATE: July 23, 2018 

REGULAR COUNCIL 

TO: Mayor & Council DATE: July 19, 2018 

FROM: General Manager, Parks Recreation & Culture FILE: 8000-01 

SUBJECT: Amend Partnering Agreement – Surrey City Hall Child Care Centre 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Parks, Recreation & Culture Department recommends that Council: 

1. Receive this report for information;

2. Authorize the General Manager, Parks, Recreation & Culture to amend the Partnering
Agreement for the Surrey City Hall Child Care Centre (Appendix “I”) for a one (1) year
extension effective November 1, 2018 to November 1, 2019 with an option to extend for a
further term of four (4) years to November 1, 2023 between the City of Surrey and the and
Young Men’s Christian Association of Greater Vancouver (YMCA); and

3. Authorize the General Manager, Parks, Recreation & Culture to execute the amending
Partnering Agreement, subject to satisfactory performance and any other related
considerations.

INTENT 

The purpose of this report is to obtain Council approval to amend the existing Partnering 
Agreement, (Appendix “I”), extending the services provided by the YMCA to deliver child care at 
City Hall for an additional one (1) year period with an option to extend for a futher term of four 
(4) years for the provision of child care services at City Hall.

BACKGROUND 

The Surrey City Hall Child Care Centre agreement has been in place since City Hall opened in 
February of 2013.  In that five (5) year period, City Staff have developed a good working 
relationship with the YMCA as the service provider.  Parents of the children in the program have 
indicated an 89% overall satisfaction rate, established through parent surveys completed by the 
YMCA.  Other indicators were surveyed such as the developmental outcomes for children at 87%, 
the classroom environment at 92%, the centre operations at 90% and kindergarten readiness at 
89%.  
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The YMCA’s child care curriculum aligns with the BC Ministry of Education's Early Learning 
Framework, as well as the City’s approach to healthy child development.  Their national play-
based curriculum helps build capacity for lifelong learning and combines decades of experience in 
child care delivery with the latest body of knowledge on how the brain develops and how children 
learn. 

In June 2018, all City staff were given the opportunity through a City survey to provide feedback 
regarding their experience with the application process and overall child care services provided by 
the YMCA Child Care Services at City Hall.  17 staff participated in the survey. 

An average overall satisfaction rate of 86% was calculated based on the average ratings 
determined by the two surveys (YMCA and City of Surrey surveys respectively).  The highest 
ratings were given to quality of services and the quality and location of the service.  There were 
lower satisfaction rates in the area of access to childcare services from City employees and in the 
communications in regards to the timeliness of availability for waitlist families.  Overall this rate 
indicates a fairly positive satisfaction level by families with the services provided by the YMCA at 
the City Hall Child Care Centre.   

The child care service provided by the YMCA are aligned with the British Columbia Early 
Learning Child Care Agreement outcomes to enhance, expand and support the long-term 
sustainability of a community planned continuum of high quality, accessible, affordable and 
comprehensive child care services for Surrey families. 

When the City Hall Child Care Centre first opened, there were fewer City employees utilizing the 
child care services and more spaces were being used by the community.  As children are aging out 
of the programs and into kindergarten, more spots are being utilized by City staff.  

The City Hall Child Care Centre offers 25 spots for the 3 to 5 year program and currently will 
accept both full time and part time registration.  The infant and toddler (0 to 36 months) spaces 
are limited to 12 spots due to licensing and space restriction.   

DISCUSSION 

Currently the utilization of space for the infant and toddler program is 80% full time and 20% 
part time for 3 to 5 years olds it is 70% full time and 30% part time.  Full time is defined as 4-5 
days per week and part time is 2 – 3 days per week.   The full time and part time programs are 
both at maximum capacity with 298 people on the waitlist, 58 being City staff.  Priority 
registration is given to City staff who account for 50% of the current registrations. 

A common challenge in securing quality childcare in the Lower Mainland is the management of 
waitlisted applicants particularly for the Infant and Toddler program.  Large waitlists are common 
and unfavourable for families seeking child care at this facility and others across the region.  
There has been much discussion about how to best address this concern.  The City is working 
with the YMCA to continuously improve the level of service related to the waitlist.  Council will 
be made aware of progress in relation to providing high quality child care services at City Hall. 

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS 

The extension of services provided by the YMCA will assist in supporting the City’s Sustainability 
Charter 2.0 themes of Inclusion and Education and Culture.  Specifically, this project will support 
the following Desired Outcomes (DO) and Strategic Directions (SD):  
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• Age Friendly Communities - DO 17: Families have access to affordable and quality local
childcare.

• Age Friendly Communities - SD 14:Ensure sufficient high quality child care spaces are
available in the City.

• Learning - DO 3: Meaningful and accessible early childhood learning opportunities are in
place for children and families.

FUNDING 

The City has  provided the YMCA an exclusive licence to use and occupy the Premises and 
Outdoor Activity Areas and license to use the Common Areas and Facilities.  The YMCA will pay 
to the City an annual licence fee in the amount of $1.00 to be paid in full prepayment of the 
licence fees for the term.   

CONCLUSION 

Given the City’s investment in the day care facility, the City’s expectation is that the highest level 
of child care service be provided.  The City will continue to work with the YMCA to provide high 
quality child care services to employee families and the community. 

Based on the above discussions, it is recommended that Council: 

• Authorize the General Manager, Parks, Recreation & Culture to amend the Partnering
Agreement for the Surrey City Hall Child Care Centre (Appendix “I”) for a one (1) year
extension effective November 1, 2018 to November 1, 2019 with an option to extend for a
further term of four (4) years to November 1, 2023 between the City of Surrey and the and
Young Men’s Christian Association of Greater Vancouver (YMCA); and

• Authorize the General Manager, Parks, Recreation & Culture to execute the amending
Partnering Agreement, subject to satisfactory performance and any other related
considerations.

Laurie Cavan, 
General Manager 
Parks, Recreation & Culture 
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APPENDIX "I"




























































